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ctions Incorporated v. Vargas Doc.

WO
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA
J&J Sports Productions, Inc., No. CV-11-02229-PHX-JAT
Plaintiff, ORDER
V.

Jose Rubio Vargas,dividually, and d/b/a
Tacos El Grullo,

Defendant.

Pending before the Court is Plaintiffdotion for Summary Judgment (Doc. 19).

Defendant has not filed a response toNtogion. The Court now rules on the Motion.
l. BACKGROUND

On November 11, 2011, Phiff filed a Complaint against Defendant in this

Court. In its Complaint, Plaintiff allegethat it was granted the exclusive nationwig
commercial distribution rights to Firepower’: Manny Pacquiaw. Miguel Cotto, WBO
Welterweight Championship Fight Progrdm telecast nationwide on Saturday
November 14, 2009 (hereinaftdye “Program”). (Doc. 1 at 1 9). Plaintiff further allege
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that these rights included all under-card bouts and fight commentary, in addition fo th

main event, encompassed the television broadcast of the Programd.)( Plaintiff
alleges that, pursuant to contract, Plaintiff entered into sublicensing agreements
various commercial establishments to pethe public exhibitiorof the Program. 1. at

1 10). Plaintiff alleges that Defendant Jose Rubio Vargas, individually and d
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business as “Tacos El Grulloihlawfully intercepted andxhibited the Program at his

establishment in Mesa, Arizona. at  12.

In its Complaint, Plaintiff alleges vidians of the Federadlommunications Act of
1934 (“FCA"), 47 U.S.C. § 6086t seq.and the Cable & Televish Consumer Protectior
and Competition Act of 1992 (“Cablct of 1992”), 47 U.S.C. § 558t seq.as well as

conversion under Arizona lawld. at Y 14, 19 & 23. Defelant filed an answer on

January 24, 2012. The discovery deadkves November 9, 2012. (Doc. 17). On

December 7, 2012, Plaintiff filed the pending Motion for Summary Judgment.

Il. LEGAL STANDARD

Summary judgment is appropriate whi&he movant shows that there is n
genuine dispute as to any maéfact and the movant entitled to judgment as a matte
of law.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(a). “A party serting that a fact cannot be or is genuing
disputed must support that aggm by . . . citing to particar parts of materials in the
record, including depositions, documents, etautrally stored information, affidavits, of
declarations, stipulations . . . admissions, iigatory answers, or other materials,” or K
“showing that materials cited do not establish the absence or presence of a g
dispute, or that an adverse party cannot predadmissible evidence smpport the fact.”
Id. at 56(c)(1)(A)&(B). Thussummary judgment is mandated “against a party who f
to make a showing sufficient to establish thestence of an element essential to th
party’s case, and on whichathparty will bear the burden of proof at trial Celotex
Corp. v. Catrett477 U.S. 317, 322 (1986).

Initially, the movant bears ¢hburden of pointing out tilhe Court the basis for the
motion and the elements of the causesadion upon which the non-movant will b
unable to establish a genuine issue of material flactat 323. The bueh then shifts to
the non-movant to establish the existence of material fdctThe non-movant “must do
more than simply show thatedte is some metaphysical doastto the material facts” by

“coml[ing] forward with ‘specific facts showinthat there is a genugnissue for trial.”
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Matsushita Elec. Indus. Ce. Zenith Radio Corp475 U.S. 574, 58@7 (1986) (quoting

Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(e) (1963) (amended 201@)dispute about a fact is “genuine” if the

evidence is such that a reasbleajury could return a verdidor the nonmoving party.

Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc477 U.S. 242, 21 (1986). In the summary judgmer

context, the Court construes all disputedtdain the light most favorable to the nor

moving party. Ellison v. Robertsgr357 F.3d 1072, 107®th Cir. 2004).
. ANALYSIS

A. Violations of the Federal Comnunications Act 0f 1934 (“FCA”),
47U.S.C.8 605and the Cable Act of 1992, 47 U.S.C. 8§ 553

Plaintiff seeks summary judgment on itaiols pursuant to 47 U.S.C. section 6(
and 47 U.S.C.extion 553.

“[T]lo be held liable for a violation of47 U.S.C. § 605], alefendant must be
shown to have (1) intercepted or aided therireption of, and (2) divulged or publishe(
or aided the divulging or publishing of, a communication transmitted by the plain{
Nat'l Subscription Television v. S & H T@44 F.2d 820, 826 (9t€ir. 1981). Section
605 applies to satelliteelevision signalsDirecTV, Inc. v. Webl{45 F.3d 837, 844 (9th
Cir. 2008).

47 U.S.C. section 553 prdiis any person from inteepting, receiving, or
assisting in the intercepting or receivingafy communications ftered over a cable
system, unless specifically autizad to do so by a cable optmaor as may otherwise bg
specifically authorized by law.47 U.S.C. § 553.

Plaintiff concedes that it cannot recodamages under both sitds and requestg
that liability be found under 47 U.S.C.ctéen 605 as the Program was broadcast
closed circuit television. (Doc. 19 at 5Accordingly, the Courlimits it analysis to
whether there is a genuine disputed issuenaterial fact with rgard to Defendant’s
alleged violation of 4TJ.S.C. section 605.

Plaintiff has presented elence of the following:
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Plaintiff had the excluses nationwide distribution rights to the Program and any
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commercial establishment ithe country that wished tdistribute the Program was

obligated to contract with Plaintiff. (Doc. ¥at § 3, 8). Plaintiff's distribution rights
encompassed all undercard eventsvadl as the main event. Id( at § 7). Without
authorization of Plaintiff, Dendant unlawfully intercepted and exhibited the Program
his commercial establishmeacos El Grullo.Ifl. at § 7; Doc. 19-3 at 2-3).

As such, Plaintiff has mets initial burden of pointing out to the Court the basgi

for the motion for summary judgment on tBe5 claim and the elements of the 6(
claim. Defendant has notsgonded and, thus, has notagdished the existence of i
disputed material fact. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled tansoary judgment on its
section 605 claim.

As a result of this violation, Plaifitirequests the maximum statutory award
$10,000 and enhanced stiatry damages in the amount of $100,000.

Statutory damages are appropriate waetual damages cannot be easily prove
J & J Sports Productions, Inc. v. Caneddn. C 09-01488 PJH2009 WL 4572740, *5
(N.D. Cal. 2009). “Under $05(e)(3)(C)(i)(Il), an aggrievedarty may recover ‘a sum
not less than $1,000 or more than $10,088, the court considers just’ for eag
violation.” J & J Sports Productions Inc. v. Miramonté@$p. CV-10-02345-PHX-FJIM,
2011 WL 892350, * 2 (D. Az. March 14, 2011) (interhaitation omitted). Further,
“[a]ln award of damages should deter futemnduct but not destroy the businessd.
(quoting Kingvision Pay—Per—View v. Lake Alice Bar68 F.3d 347, 360 (9th Cir
2009)).

In awarding statutory damages, courtshiis district have considered factors su¢

as the maximum capacity ofetcommercial establishmenhe total number of patrong
present at the time of the aumthorized showing, and tlEnount defendant would havs
paid if it had purchased the rights to show the broad&este.g, id.

In this case, Plaintiff has presenteddewce that the Program was broadcast

five televisions to between 125-130 patroasd the capacity of Tacos el Grullo wa
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approximately 150 patroris. Based on the size of éhestablishment and number g
patrons present, the Coumdis a $4,000 penaltp be appropriatand will award $4,000
under 8 605(e)(3)(C)(i)(II).

Further, “[elnhanced damages are awdrdpon a showing that defendant actg

willfully and for the purpose of direct or indireommercial advantage or privat

financial gain. Under § 605(e)(3)(C)(idhe court may award up to $100,000 . . |

Miramontes 2011 WL 892350, *2. In deciding wkther to award enhanced damages,

Courts generally consider factosuch as repeat violations,
substantial unlawful monetarygains, significant actual
damages to plaintiff, advertrgy, cover charges, or charging
premium menu and drink pricesSee Kingvision Pay—Per—
View v. Gutierrez,544 F.Supp.2d 11791185 (D. Colo.
2008). Some courts find the meeunauthorized showing of a
program sufficient to award enhanced damages because given
the low probability of accidenlg showing it, it must have
been done willfullyand for profit. See Entertainment By J &
J, Inc. v. Al-Waha Enter., In219 F.Supp.2d 769, 776 (S.D.
Tex. 2002).

Here, there is no evidence of repeailations, substantial unlawful monetar

gains, advertising, cover charges, or premdrmk or menu prices. Plaintiff alleged tha

Defendant’s showig of the fight was willful and thaallegation is accepted as trug

because Defendant did not respond te thotion for summarnjudgment with any
evidence suggesting that was not willful. See J & J Sports Productions, Inc.

Marcaida, No. 10-5125 SC, 201W/L 2149923, at *2 (N.D. Cal. May 31, 2011) (notin
that it is extremely unlikely #t the signal to display the fight is acquired inadverten
and, thus, without evidence dtifie absence of willfulnesshe Court can assume thg

Defendant acted willfully and for the poses of commercial advantage warranti

! Because the Court awards Plaintiffedtdamages with regard to its conversig

claim, the Court has not taken the actual dggsancurred by Plaintiff into account whe
determining statutory damagesawoid duplicative recovery.
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enhanced damages). Becauserfaff has not shown other gmavating factors, the Courf
finds that $10,000.00 in enhancedmages to be appropriaBee Joe Hand Promotions
Inc. v. CoenNo. CV 11-2531-PHX-JAT2012 WL 2919710, *2 (DAriz. July 17, 2012)
(awarding $10,000 in enhancddmages for deterrence purposes).

B. Conversionunder Arizona Law

Plaintiff also requests summary judgmentits conversion clea. “Conversion is
any act of dominion wrongfullpsserted over another’'s persopadperty in denial of or
inconsistent with his rights therein.” Scott v. Allstate Ins. C0.553 P.2d 1221,
1225 (Ariz. Ct. App. 1976). Under Arizanlaw, “the measure of conversion damag
includes not only the value ofdtproperty taken, but alsiiher damage suffered becaus
of the wrongful detention odeprivation of the property.Collins v. First Fin. Servs.,
Inc., 815 P.2d 411, 413 (Azi Ct. App. 1991).

Here, Plaintiff has shown that it had exsive commercial distribution rights ove
the Program and, if Defendant had obtainexilslicense to broaddathe program in its
establishment with maximum fire codeccupancy of 150 psons, the commercial
sublicense fee would have be$4,200. (Doc. 19-4 at 1).8 Accordingly, Plaintiff has
made the required showing, which has been rebutted by Defendant, and, thu
Plaintiff is entitled to damagesn its conversion claim in ¢hamount of $4,200, or the
amount it would have been panhd Defendant lawfully paid for the right to show th
program.

IV. CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing,

IT IS ORDERED that Plaintiff's Motion for Smmary Judgment (Doc. 19) i

granted. The Clerk of the @a shall enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff and against
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Defendant in the amount of $280. Plaintiff may move foattorney’s fees as providec

in the Local Rules of Civil Procedure.
Dated this 27th day of March, 2013.

James A. Teilbﬂrg
Senior United States District Judge




